

MINUTES OF EXECUTIVE CABINET

MEETING DATE Thursday, 1 August 2019

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor Peter Wilson (Chair) and Councillors

Beverley Murray, Alistair Morwood and Adrian Lowe

OFFICERS: Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Mark Lester (Director

(Business, Economic and Growth)), Chris Moister (Head of Legal, Democratic & HR Services) and Philippa Braithwaite (Democratic and Member Services

Officer)

APOLOGIES: Councillors Alistair Bradley and Graham Dunn

OTHER MEMBERS: Councillors Aaron Beaver, Mark Clifford,

Gordon France, Margaret France, Tom Gray, Marion Lowe, Matthew Lynch, June Molyneaux,

John Walker and Neville Whitham

19.EC.125 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 20 June 2019 of Executive Cabinet

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 20 June 2019 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader.

19.EC.126 Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest.

19.EC.127 Public Questions

There were no public questions.

19.EC.128 Quarter One Performance Report 2019/20

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the Director (Policy and Governance) which sets out the performance against the delivery of the Corporate Strategy and Key Performance Indicators during the first quarter of 2019/2020.

Overall, performance of key projects is very good, with nine (75%) of the projects rated as green and three (25%) projects rated amber with the action plan for each of these projects contained within the report. Performance of the Corporate Strategy indicators and key service delivery measures is excellent, with 100% of Corporate Strategy measures and 88% of key service delivery measures performing on or above target or

within the 5% threshold. Action plans for those indicators performing below target were included in the report.

Members noted that, with regards to bin collection, Q1 figures had been impacted by the transition to a new waste contractor but that if performance did not improve by Q2 penalties for the contractor could be introduced. Members also noted that, with regards to Primrose Gardens, handover had proceeded despite the known snagging issues in order to meet timescales for funding.

Decision:

That the report be noted.

Reasons for Recommendation(s):

To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council's performance in delivering the Corporate Strategy.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

None.

19.EC.129 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2019/20 Report 1 (end of June 2019)

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the Chief Finance Officer which sets out the provisional revenue and capital outturn figures for the Council as compared against budgets and efficiency savings targets set for the financial year 2019/2020. Members noted the proposal for £57,000 from in-year revenue underspends to finance the Council's Mayflower 400 celebrations. Councillor Wilson advised this included the creation of a fixed term Events Coordinator post who would support the council's inclusion in the national programme of events.

Decision:

- 1. To note the full year forecast position for the 2019/20 revenue budget and capital investment programme.
- 2. To note the forecast position on the Council's reserves.
- 3. To request Council approval for the contribution of £57,000 from in-year revenue underspends to finance the Council's Mayflower 400 celebrations.
- 4. To request Council note the capital programme to be delivered in 2019/20 to 2021/22.

Reasons for Recommendation(s):

To ensure the Council's budgetary targets are achieved.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

None.

19.EC.130 Overview & Scrutiny Task Group - Social Housing Standards

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the Director (Early Intervention and Support) which sets out the Executive Cabinet's response to the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group's recommendations regarding the quality and standards of housing in the social sector. Members noted that 29 out of the 31 recommendations were being agreed, with an alternative solution for the remaining two.

Decision:

That the majority of the Task Group's recommendations, with the exclusion of item 12 and 13, are incorporated into a social Housing Standards Charter, to be developed and agreed with the Registered Housing Providers.

Reasons for Recommendation(s):

The recommendation to create and agree a Social Housing Charter to include the majority of recommendations in partnership with the Registered Providers will providers will provide a workable document to acquire investment from social landlords. It will provide a standard which can be monitored and managed closely. This Charter will take an early intervention approach and ensure issues are raised and dealt with quickly by the council whilst working in partnership with local social landlords.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

No alternatives considered.

19.EC.131 Exclusion of the Public and Press

Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972.

19.EC.132 Cowling Farm Site

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential report of the Director (Business Development and Growth) which updates Members on the progress of bringing forward the Employment site at Cowling Farm which incorporates the gypsy and traveller allocation for the Linfoot Family currently residing at Hut Lane.

Decision:

- 1. To acknowledge the risk associated with the delivery programme for the gypsy and traveller allocation.
- 2. To note the further works to be undertaken to review options for the site.

Reasons for Recommendation(s):

Progress works to look at alternative delivery options for Council Land at Cowling Farm.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

Continue to progress with the proposed Employment scheme with gypsy and traveller allocation which would result in a loss to the Council.

19.EC.133 Alker Lane

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential report of the Director (Business Development and Growth) which provides an update on the progress with the Alker Lane development, and confirms procurement options for bringing the site forward for development.

Decision:

- 1. To acknowledge the possible Lancashire Environment Partnership (LEP) grant funding available for the development.
- 2. To acknowledge the proposed procurement options.
- To delegate the appointment of project management, design and planning support for the Alker Lane Development to Executive Member (Resources) for option 1 or option 2.
- 4. To delegate the appointment of any ecological consultants to undertake ecological mitigation works to Executive Member (Resources).
- 5. Note that financial approval for the scheme construction costs will be subject to a separate budget report to Council in the foreseeable future.
- 6. To acknowledge that officers will continue to progress mitigation of ecological constraints and diversion of the United Utilities water main to allow the funding programme to be achieved.

Reasons for Recommendation(s):

- 1. To ensure continued progress of the development site to ensure that the corporate priorities are delivered.
- 2. To generate jobs within Chorley.
- 3. To ensure that timescales associated with the LEP funding are met, if the funding application is successful.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

The Council could choose not to bring forward the site at this time and rely on other employment land owners to create the supply of employment premises of which there is a shortage in Chorley now and in the future. However, there is no guarantee that other land owners will bring forward their sites and in action by the Council will only seek to exacerbate the situation.

19.EC.134 Westway Budget Allocation and Contractor Procurement

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential report of the Director (Business Development and Growth) which seeks approval for the allocation of the project budget for the Westway Sports Hub, and the procurement approach and evaluation criteria for the for the appointment of a contractors to deliver the Hub.

Decision:

- 1. To approve the allocation of the project budget.
- 2. To approve the proposed procurement methodologies and evaluation criteria for three separate works contracts. These comprise the following:
 - Works Contract 1 A single stage open tender with suitability questionnaire / quality element and JCT design and build contract for the pavilion, access and car park.
 - Works Contract 2 A single stage open tender with suitability questionnaire / quality element and JCT Intermediate Contract for the grass playing pitch improvements.
 - Works Contract 3 An NEC design and build Contract for the artificial grass pitch (AGP) procured through the Manufacturer Led Artificial Grass Pitch (AGP) Framework.

Reasons for Recommendation(s):

- 1. Works Contract 1 The use of an open tender process, with a quality element, for the pavilion, access and car parking is the best way of delivering a significantly better price for this element of the works and better value for the project within the budget. The majority of the design work would be drawn and detailed at tender stage to ensure the Council and Football Foundation get what they are expecting from the process. Design and build procurement is proposed to increase cost certainty on the project whilst reducing the contract risk remaining with the Council.
- 2. Works Contract 2 The use of an open tender process, with a quality element, for the grass pitch improvement is the best way of delivering a significantly better price for this element of the works and better value for the project within the budget.
- 3. Works Contract 3 Use of the Football Foundation Framework for the delivery of the AGP is a requirement of the Football Foundation and a successful funding bid will require the use of this Framework. Chorley Council Contracts Procedure Rules provide for Tenders to be invited and received by the public sector framework provider in accordance with their rules (CPR 31.2).

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

- 1. Works Contract 1 Use of compliant public sector framework agreements were considered for the delivery of the pavilion, access and car park works contract, however contractors included on such framework agreements tend to be very large companies and consultant's advice received is that given the value of the proposed works contract, a framework approach may not deliver best value. Openly advertised tender with a quality element is considered the best way of delivering the project within budget. Traditional specification / contract was also considered for pavilion, access and car park works however the use of a heavily specified design and build contract (with the exception of the mechanical and electrical design which would be output driven) is considered to be best approach.
- 2. Works Contract 2 alternatives have not been considered.
- 3. Works Contract 3 alternatives have not been considered.

Chair	Date